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GENERAL INFORMATION

1. MISSION STATEMENT

Order No.96-50 dated 24 January 193&tablished the Social Security Debt RepaymentdF(@risse
d’Amortissement de la Dette SocialdCADES on 1 January 1996. CADES is an administrativelipudgency
(Etablissement Public & Caractére AdministratiEPA) supervised by the French Minister of the Econany
Finance and the Minister in charge of Social Séguri

CADES’ mission is to:
e Amortize the social security debt transferred to.é&. the cumulative deficits of the Central Aggrd
Social Security BodiesAgence Centrale des Organismes de Sécurité SecREOS$, and
e Make payments to various social security fundsa@gdnisations.

CADES’ mandate has been extended beyond 31 Ja@04#dy as decided initially to until such date asdbeial
security debt transferred to it has been fullyreygished.

In the furtherance of its mission, CADES receives proceeds of a special tax known as the sodialkise debt
repayment contributionQontribution pour le Remboursement de la Dette @eei CRDS, introduced in Chapter
2 of the aforementioned Order. It also receivedpiftzeeds from the sale of property assets ownddemased by
the national agencies falling under the basic $seieurity scheme and ACOSS.

Since 2009, a 0.2% portion of the supplementarjaksecurity contribution@ontribution Sociale Généralisée —
CSQ had been paid to CADES. From 2011 this portiors wacreased to 0.48% for CSG on all taxable
employment income, unemployment and similar besigficome from property and investments; and t8%.2or
profits from gaming.

Starting in 2011, two new resources have beenatddo CADES:
* a 1.3% share of the social levies on income froop@rty and investments;
* an annual payment of €2.1 billion from the RetiramBeserve FundFonds de Réserve pour les
Retraites — FRRuntil 2024 inclusive.

As of 1 January 2016, the portion of the CSG atied@o CADES increased:

» from 0.48% to 0.60% on all taxable employment inepomemployment and similar benefits, and income
from property and investments, replacing the paynoéri.3% of social levies on income from property
and investments;

» from 0.28% to 0.30% on profits from gaming.

CADES is authorised to borrow funds, in particul@a public offerings and the issuance of negotiadidt
securities.

Moreover, CADES benefits from repayments of redelies from foreign social security agencies to thgomal
health insurance fund for salaried worke@aiése Nationale d’Assurance Maladie des TravaifleBalariés—
CNAMTS.

Lastly, in accordance with Act No. 2004-810 of 18glist 2004, any future surpluses generated by eladthh
insurance branch of the French social securityesystill be allocated to CADES. The Social Secufilyance Act
will define the terms under which this transferlwake place.

2. ORGANIZATION OF THE AGENCY

CADES is overseen by a Board of Directors and ae8iigory Board.

The composition of the Board of Directors was altieloy Decree No. 2011-458 of 26 April 2011. It noamnprises
a majority of representatives of social securitgibs, whereas it was previously composed solelgovernment
representatives.

It is governed by the provisions of Decree No. 20226 dated 7 November 2012 relating to public letidgd

1 As modified by Social Security Finance Act No. BI64 of 19 December 1997, Act No. 98-1194 of 23dbsimer 1998, the 2001, 2002,
and 2006 Finance Acts, the 2003, 2004, 2006 anél 30@ial Security Finance Acts, Act No. 2004-81A®fAugust 2004 relating to health
insurance, Organic Law No. 2005-881 of 2 August®08ct No. 2008-1249 of 1 December 2008, Order 2009-80 of 22 January 2009,
Act No. 2009-1646 of 24 December 2009, Act No. 2816 of 12 May 2010, Organic Law No. 2010-1380 8fNlovember 2010, Act
No. 2010-1594 of 20 December 2010, Act No. 2010716629 December 2010, Act No. 2010-1658 of 29 bemer 2010, Act No. 2011-
1906 of 21 December 2011, Act No. 2012-354 of 14dd&2012, Act No. 2012-958 of 16 August 2012, Act I9014-1655 of 29 December
2014, Act No. 2015-994 of 17 August 2015 and Act R@15-1702 of 21 December 2015.
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accounting management (GBCP), subject to the I|gmalvisions and regulations specific to CADES
(aforementioned Order of 24 January 1996, and [@ddre 96-353 dated 24 April 1996).

Decree No. 2015-1764 of 24 December 2015 exempBESAfrom applying French budgetary accounting rules
with effect from 1 January 2016.

Pursuant to the provisions of the aforementionedr@&es, financial and accounting transactions fatlen the
responsibility of Mr. Patrice Ract Madoux, the Aatising Officer of CADES and Chairman of the Boarfd
Directors, and of its Chief Accounting Officer, Miervé Chalamel, until 7 March 2016, and Ms. ChresBubhl,
appointed by ministerial order of 28 January 204G-mance ministry budgetary and accounting auditat as
Chief Accounting Officer of CADES from 8 March 2Q28hen she took up this post.

CADES' annual budget is drawn up by 30 Novembeahefprevious year by the Board of Directors and-eygd
by the ministers who supervise the agency.

Financing is limited to appropriated funds, exchgliexpenses related to the repayment of loansndiab
management costs, and assessment and collectiayestar the 2016 financial year.

The Board of Directors reviews and signs off theoants drawn up by the Accounting Officer. The ficial
statements are then forwarded to the General Dir@ftthe Public Finances Directorat@ifection Générale des
Finances Publiques DGFiP) prior to submission to the Government Audit Géf{€our des Comptés

CADES' Board of Directors examines and approvesaitmounts. In parallel, the Board ensures that CADE
maintains a healthy underlying financial basis at®ischeduled lifetime by updating its revenueséassts on the
basis of changes in the amortisation schedule efdibt carried on the balance sheet as a lialahiy debt
servicing charges.

Accounting procedures and principles are subjeatdontractual, independent audit. In addition, G&D
Is subject to financial audits conducted by theegnoment, in accordance with the Order of 19 May9200
and audits carried out by the Government Audit Office.

Accounting transactions are recorded by CADES imnformation system managed using software thahared
by the Authorising Officer and the Accounting O#fic The system is networked and features a sirafigbdse.
Authorisations for displaying and processing dateehbeen clearly defined so as to enable the A¢cmu®fficer

and the Authorising Officer to exercise their regpe powers.

3. GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR RECORDING ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS

Accounting framework

Article 7 of Decree No. 96-353 of 24 April 1996/ating to CADES, calls for the adoption of a spécizart of
accounts drawn up in accordance with the standaad of accounts for administrative public agen¢lastruction
M 9-1 from the Public Finances Directorate, reptabg the public agencies’ common nomenclature darfuary
2016).

This chart of accounts being modelled on the gémdat of accounts, it was found to be poorlyesdito CADES'
activity. Consequently, the Board of Directors ded on 10 October 1996 to adopt the chart of adsaused by
credit institutions.

Consequently, both the transactions and the arfimgaicial statements submitted by the Accountin§jc@f are
presented in accordance with standards specificedit institutions. In addition, separate finahstatements are
drawn up in accordance with the regulatory starslafgublic agencies, for submission to audit oiggions.

This specific accounting framework was recommenigdn independent consulting firm and approvedHhsy t
Authorising Officer, the Accounting Officer, the fBal Directorate of Public Accounting and the [fren

Accounting Standards Boar@d@nseil National de la Comptabilite CNC) (Opinion No. 99-04, plenary session of
18 March 1999).

Transactions executed by the Accounting Officer

Transactions executed by CADES' Accounting Offiddfer from those traditionally executed by Accougt
Officers at other administrative public agencies.

Due to CADES' status as a market participant, fipestructures have been set up in conformity w\lig agency’s
mission. For example, financing transactions as@rdjuished from administrative transactions.
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1. Financing transactions

The administrative workflow of financing transactsoreflects the existence of Front Office, MiddI&ic@ and
Back Office services.

The Front Office is responsible for transactionshie financial, interest rate and currency markietsccordance
with defined limits and procedures. These routra@dactions relate to financing, investment andrtheagement
of interest rate and foreign exchange exposures.

A sequentially numbered ticket is issued for eaandaction, describing its main features, and agdd by the
Front Office. The Back Office then verifies andidates the ticket before forwarding it to the Acoting Officer.

The Middle Office gathers information on cash poss, draws up forecasts, provides repayment sééedand
performs a first-level plausibility check of Fradffice transactions.

The Back Office records and validates the transastprocessed by the Front Office after verifyihgttformal
presentation and threshold requirements are met.BHtk Office monitors risk, produces reports aaités with
the Accounting Departments.

The Accounting Officer then records transactiokéts as income or expenses.
2. Administrative transactions

Performance of the administrative section of thddet is done in compliance with the provisionshe Decree
No. 2012-1246 dated 7 November 2012 relating tolipubudget and accounting management (GBCP).
Administrative expenses are evidenced by paymeté¢rsrand income by receipt orders, accompaniedchéy t
appropriate supporting vouchers and documents.

After due completion of the control procedures désd in Articles 19 and 20 relating to the aforetiened
GBCP, items of expenditure and income are recodriisthe accounts and the amounts are paid oratetle

3. Cash movements

CADES has opened a euro-denominated deposit acaouhe books of SCBCM Finances that is listedhia t
register of government accounts.

In the books of CADES, entries to the debit of tatccount record expenses falling within the adniiaie
budget. Only the Accounting Officer may authoribede payments. Since 1 January 2014 entries tcrelé of
this account record solely revenue from CRDS leviesales of precious metals and gems paid ovérebi?ublic
Finances Directorate network. This takes the forimdaily transfers from the Public Finances Direater
departmental (DDFIP) and regional (DRFIP) offices.

Since 1 September 2005, CADES has had its own rerated account with the Banque de France thastadi
from the dedicated Treasury account. Movementshise &ccount comprise all euro-denominated financial
transactions completed by CADES and all CRDS an® @S/enue paid over by ACOSS. Once again, only the
Accounting Officer may authorize expenditures.

The balance on the deposit account is transfeor€@RDES’ own account twice weekly.

In addition, CADES has opened accounts with fordigancial institutions in New York and London.

These are intended to be zero-balance accountg.réberd all transactions related to CADES issuesurrencies
other than the euro and their transformation int@elenominated structures on the internationaketar

Due to management constraints attributable prignawilthe time lag between the European, Asian, Acaarand
Australian markets, CADES has been dispensed figplyimg the provision of the decree relating to GBCP,
which states that only public accounting officeraymauthorize transactions affecting the financiecoants.
Accordingly, the Back Office carries out transaei@n CADES’ foreign currency accounts.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

NET DEBT AT REPAYMENT VALUE

(€ millions)

At 31 December 2016 135,694
At 31 December 2015 126,039
At 31 December 2014 129,279

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014

NET PROFIT 14,426 13,513 12,717
Primarily reflecting the following items:

CRDS and CSG revenue 14,662 12,851 12,440
Social levies on income from property and investimeret
of expenses 3) 1,494 1,430
Retirement Reserve Fund~qnds de Réserve pour les
Retraites — FRR 2,100 2,100 2,100
Estimation changes and error adjustments 0 (188) 0
Interest expenses (2,330) (2,742) (3,251)

General operating charges

3)

)

(@)

The table above distinguishes between interestresgseand general operating charges.
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BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 31 December 31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
ASSETS

Cash in hand, balances with central

banks and post office banks (Note 1,636.81 2,264.96 1,689.95
1)

Treasury bills and other bills

eligible for refinancing with central 4,000.00 9,000.00 7,000.06
banks (Note 1)

Loans and advances to credit

institutions (Note 1)

- Repayable at sight 0.03 0.18 0.38
- Repayable at term 0.00 520.61 0.00
Intangible assets (Note 2) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tangible assets (Note 2) 0.08 0.09 0.08
Other assets (Note 3) 167.13 185.89 136.22
Prepayments and accrued income 6.824.83 6.287.54 4.631.01
(Note 4)

TOTAL ASSETS 12,628.88 18,259.27 13,457.70
LIABILITIES & RESERVES

Amounts owed to credit institutions

(Note 5)

- Payable at sight 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Payable at term 1,003.37 1,003.46 1,003.37
Debts evidenced by securities (Note

6)

- Negotiable debt instruments 14,093.80 8,431.71 37408

- Bonds and similar instruments 126,673.50 1298m 3. 131,869.13

- Othgr. debts evidenced by 0.00 0.00 0.00
securities

Other liabilities (Note 7) 5,329.78 4,748.37 3,02b.
g\)ccruals and deferred income (Note 1,263.56 1,199.74 1,306.42
Sub-total — Liabilities 148,364.01 144,797.09 143%40
Provisions (Note 8a) 98.40 113.06 43.05
Property endowment 181.22 181.22 181.22
Retained earnings (150,441.15) (140,344.97) (1431
Profit for the period 14,426.39 13,512.87 12,716.81
Sub-total — Reserves (135,833.53) (126,650.88) (188.75)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 12,628.88 18,259.27 13,457.70

RESERVES
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Period ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
g;terest receivable and similar income (Note 1,086.12 876.67 647 12
- From transactions with credit institutions 160.33 39.19 13.69
- From bonds and other fixed income securities 0.00 0.09 3.52
- Other interest receivable and similar income 925. 837.39 629.91
Interest payable and similar charges (Note 10) (3,378.43) (3,591.72) (3,870.57)
- On transactions with credit institutions (40.79) (43.87) (42.03)
- On bonds and other fixed income securities 387 (3,547.85) (3,828.54)
Fees payable (Note 10) (37.66) (26.87) (27.47)
if\)lns and losses on trading securities (Note 0.00 (0.10) (0.12)
- Net proflt (loss) on foreign exchange 0.00 (0.10) (0.12)
transactions
Gains and losses on investment securities 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Note 11a)
- Net profit (loss) on investment securities 0.00 .000 0.00
Other operating income — banking 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other operating charges — banking (0.02) (0.02) (0.02)
NET BANKING INCOME (2,329.99) (2,742.04) (3,251.06)
General operating charges (Note 13) (2.92) (2.87) (2.89)
- Staff costs (1.12) (2.07) (1.04)
- Other administrative expenses (1.81) (1.80) (.85
Depreciation and impairment provisions -
intangible and tangible assets 0.02) (0.01) (0.04)
Other operating income 16,933.24 16,635.60 16,196.21
- Income relating to CRDS and CSG (Notes 12a 14.811.43 13,008.56 12.609.55
and 12.1a)
- Income relating to social levies on income

from property and investments (Note 12.2a) (15.28) 1,526.90 1,486.11
- Income from Retirement Reserve Fund

(Fonds de Réserve pour les Retraites — FRR 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00

(Note 12.3)
- Income from property (Note 13a) 0.20 0.13 0.13
- Provisions reversed for receivables (Notes

12a and 12.1a) 14.90 0.00 0.41
- Other provisions reversed for receivables 21.99 0.01 0.00
Other operating charges (173.95) (190.29) (226.21)
- Charges relating to CRDS and CSG (Notes
12a and 12.1a) (150.72) (130.17) (131.17)
- Charges relating to social levies on income

from property and investments (Note 12.2a) (0.58) (32.99) (32.18)
- Payments to the State (Note 14) 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Provision for sundry liabilities (Note 14) 0.00 5.40) (42.80)
- Provision for receivables (Notes 12a, 12.1a
and 12.2a) (22.65) (21.73) (19.97)
- Charges related to property (Note 13a) 0.00 0.00 (0.09)
Estimation changes and error adjustments
(Note 15a) 0.00 (187.97) 0.00
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT 14,426.36 13,512.42 12,716.0
OPERATING PROFIT 14,426.36 13,512.42 12,716.01
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION 14,426.36 13,512.42 12,716.01
- Exceptional income (Note 15) 0.03 0.45 0.80
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 14,426.39 13,512.87 12,5181
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
Net banking income (2,330) (2,742) (3,251)
Inflation premiums 42 5 44
Provisions for financial instruments 0 0 0
Amortisation of premiums and balancing (64) (83) (76)
payments

Change in accrued interest (320) (254) 30
Net cash from (used in) banking activities (A) (2B (3,073) (3,253)
Net operating income 16,756 16,442 15,967

(Increase) decrease in accrued income from

CRDS and CSG (79) (132) 41
(Increase)/decrease in accruals on social levies 3 (36) (55)
(Increase)/decrease in deferred expenses 10 27
Unearned income 0 1 0
Provisions — sundry allocations or reversals (22) 0 42
Net cash from (used in) operating activities (B) 16,668 16,302 15,992
Net_ c_:ash from (used in) banking and operating (C=A+B) 13,996 13,230 12,739
activities
Net cash from (used in) financing activities (D) 3,464 (134) (1,343)
Debt assumed (E) (23,609) (10,000) (10,000)
Net cash flow for the year (C+D+E) (6,149) 3,095 396
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period
Cash and cash equivalents at close of period BL,78 8,690 7,294
Net_lncrease (decrease) in cash and cash 5637 11,786 8.690
equivalents

(6,149) 3,095 1,396

The cash flow statement takes into account thevtlg items:

* A —netcash from (used in) banking activities
This is net banking income (debts plus income faenvatives and cash instruments) less income apdnses
with no effect on the cash position (provisions,oamation of issuance and redemption premiumsyugcc
interest, revaluation of index-linked bonds, etc.).

B —net cash from (used in) operating activities
This is the operating profit or loss (mainly incofnem CRDS and CSG, social levies on income frompprty
and investments and from the FRR) less income apdnses with no effect on the cash position (actieome
or deferred expenses).

e« C —net cash from (used in) banking and operatitigiies
This consists of net cash from (used in) bankirgy@erating activities (C = A + B).

* D —net cash from (used in) financing activities
These are the cash flows resulting from debt isseiand debt repayment during the period.

e E —social security debt assumed
Social security debt assumed represents the desibbergs made during the period by CADES in respedebt
assumed from social security funding organisations.

The net change in cash and cash equivalents efleetfollowing cash flows:
- net cash from (used in) banking and operatinyities (C);
- net cash from (used in) financing activities (B)g
- social security debt assumed (E).
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS

At
(€ millions) (notes 16-18)

31 December
2016

31 December
2015

31 December
2014

COMMITMENTS GIVEN (note 18)

Financing commitments

Payments to various social security bodies (Ardcly
of Order 96-50 of 24 January 1996)
- First assumption of debt provided for by the
2011 Social Security Finance Act
- Second assumption of debt provided for by the
2011 Social Security Finance Act
Financing commitments given: acquired under
repurchase agreements, currency purchases, treasury
bills

COMMITMENTS RECEIVED (note 18)
Financing commitments
- From credit institutions: credit lines

- From credit institutions: credit lines in treagills
- Financing commitments received: borrowings

- Financing commitments received: commercial paper
and lent under repurchase agreements

- Financing commitments received: payments from the
Retirement Reserve FunBdnds de Réserve pour les
Retraite3

700.00

16,800.00

23,609.04

1,200.00

18,900.00

33,609.04

700.00

21,000.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2016

Social security debts assumed

Under the 2011 Social Security Funding Acbi(de Financement de la Sécurité SocialeFSS 2010-1594 of
20 December 2010, CADES was required to take omive debts:

Firstly, for up to a maximum of €68 billion and B§ December 2011 at the latest:
o the 2009 and 2010 deficits for the three brancHeth® general system - Health, Maternity,
Incapacity and Death; Senior Citizens, Widows anidloiers; and Family, and for the Senior
Citizens’ Solidarity FundKonds de solidarité vieillesse - FSV).
o the provisional 2011 deficit for the two branchesalth, Maternity, Incapacity and Death; and
Family.

The deficits relating to this first assumption afbts have now been duly recognised, in the amolug6b.28
billion.

The second assumption of debts initially concenthed2011 to 2018 deficits for the Senior Citizehsgdows
and Widowers branch and the Senior Citizens’ Satg&und, subject to an overall maximum of €64itn

and a yearly maximum of €10 billion.

In accordance with Article 16 of the 2014 Sociat\8#y Funding Act No. 2013-1203 of 23 December 201
the deficits of the Health and Family branches meed to be included along with those of the Se@itizens,
Widows and Widowers branch while the cut-off daie thking into account these deficits has been ditbu
forward from 2018 to 2017.

The 2016 Social Security Funding Act No. 2015-18021 December 2015 provides for the payment of the
balance of the second assumption, i.e. €23.6 hjllin2016.

Decree No. 2016-110 of 4 February 2016 definesrtbihods and repayment schedule for this payment.

CADES paid €6.65 billion in 2012, €7.72 billion 2013 and €10 billion in 2014 and 2015 in respechis second
assumption of debts.

In 2016, CADES paid the balance of the second gldrassumption of debt, amounting to €23.6 billlmased on
the recognised 2013 and 2014 deficits of the HealthFamily branches, and part of the recognisé® 2e@ficit of
the Health branch, the provisional 2015 deficitshef Senior Citizens, Widows and Widowers branath @inthe
FSV and the adjustment of the 2014 deficits ofSkaior Citizens, Widows and Widowers branch anthefFSV.

. Financing transactions
Issues (excluding commercial paper)
CADES borrowed €13.78 billion:
e three new issues under the UK programme in USRrcamount of €7.07 billion;
» five new issues under the French programme (twBUR, one in GBP and two in BRL and USD) for an

amount of €5.36 billion;
« three tap issues under the French EUR programmanfamount of €1.35 billion.
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Redemptions (excluding commercial paper)

CADES reimbursed €16.01 billion at maturity:
e six issues made under the French programme (twW@Y) two in EUR and two in USD) for an amount of
€12.16 billion;
* two issues made under the UK programme in USDriaraount of €3.85 billion.
» Credit lines

Commitments received as at 31 December 2016 coeapris

« four back-up credit lines totalling €700 million ieh are cancellable by the counterparty at 30 days’
notice;

The renewable loan with Royal Bank of Scotlanddoramount of €500 million that matured on 19 Mag@Was
not renewed.
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*  ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND METHODS

1. Basis of valuation and presentation

The accounting policies adopted by CADES meet ®guirements.

Given that the activity of CADES is essentiallydirtial, the financial statements are prepared é¢ordance with
accounting regulations applicable to credit ingitites and financial institutions as well as witmggally accepted
accounting principles in France. In particular, ®has applied the accrual concept and the prudsmmept.

The presentation of the financial statements caaplith Regulation No. 2014-07 of 26 November 28sded by
the French Accounting Standards Authorifyuforité des Normes ComptableANC) relating to the preparation
and publication of the individual accounts of ctadstitutions. In its opinion CNC 99-04, the FranNational
Accounting Board Conseil National de la Comptabilité — CN@ecided that CADES could present certain
transactions in a manner specific to it. Accordmgh its profit and loss account, CADES record®ragting
income and expenses, which are mainly composetheofrédvenue drawn from the CRDS and CSG and from
property transactions, and payments to the Statesacial security funding organisations.

These accounts are then aggregated to comply wéhchart of accounts applicable to administratiuélip
undertakings in accordance with the requirementsgifuction M91, replaced by the public agencies’ common
nomenclature on 1 January 2016, before being stdatid the Government Audit Office.

2. Specific characteristics of CADES

CADES has been tasked with paying down the debisteared to it. The profit or loss therefore measuits
capacity to reduce its own debt, and correspondsetaesources allocated to it less the finan@atsrelating to
its debt with third parties.

The profit and loss account should be interpretetight of the specific mission entrusted to CADERe sole
purpose of which is to extinguish a debt overdtsesluled term.

3. Estimation changes and error adjustments

In preparing the financial statements for the yaated 31 December 2015, CADES recognised estimelianges
in the 2015 financial statements to improve thesiancy of estimation methods and the accuraayatd, in
accordance with the notifications issued by ACOSS.

According to the chart of accounts for credit ingtons, the impact of any estimation change cpoading to the
financial year in progress must be recognised @fitpand loss for the period. In the financial staents for the
year ended 31 December 2015, the impact of estmathanges is recognised on a separate line dhtioene
statement (see Note 15a) in the amount of €-187ifion.

4. Debts assumed from social security funding orgasations

The payments CADES makes in respect of debts assfroma social security funding organisations in@dance
with the social security deficit funding acts aeeognised against the profit and loss account itoiegward.

When CADES’ payments to the social security bodissletermined on the basis of the provisional defare
greater than the deficits subsequently establislaedadjustment may be made in CADES’ favour. These
adjustments are recognised against the profit@sldccount brought forward at the time of the paym

Debts assumed in accordance with legal stipulatlmtsfor which payments have not yet been madeh¢o t
organisations are recorded as off-balance sheeniomnts.
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5. CADES’ resources

5.1 Contribution to the repayment of the social serity debt

= Revenue explicitly allocated to CADES

The social security debt repayment contribution PSR defined by Order No. 96-50 of 24 January 1996 w
explicitly created to provide resources to CADEStidde 6 of said Order states that “the proceedsthef
contributions created in respect of Chapter 2 ofl €arder on repayment of the social security ddiztllsbe
allocated to Caisse d’Amortissement de la Dettagbic

= A broad-based tax

The tax is levied on multiple sources of incomee@®@an distinguish between:

* On the one hand, employment income and unemployamshisimilar benefits: salaried income, redundancy
payments and retirement indemnities (under cegaimitions), retirement and disability pensionsltreand
maternity benefits, housing benefits, family allowas, and child-minding benefits, etc., and

* On the other hand, income from property, from invests, from the sale of precious metals and gamd,
from gaming.

Contributions assessed on the sales of precioualsnatd gems are collected by the State’s finaragahcies
(DGFIP and DGDDI) before being paid over to CADES.

Contributions assessed on employment income andogment income replacements as well as income from
property, investments and gaming are paid ovey #gilACOSS to CADES as and when they are collebtethe
central agency.

= Collection costs borne by CADES

Article 8 of the Order of 24 January 1996 stipudateat CADES shall bear assessment and collectists.cThese
costs consist of a flat amount defined jointly by tMinister of the Economy and Finance and the $fémiin
charge of Social Security.

Collection agencies deduct a 0.5% withholding fitue contribution paid over to CADES.

CRDS contributions levied on income from propemyegeed in the tax assessment register mainly byffices of
the DGFIP Direction Générale des Finances PubliquesPublic Finances Directorate) are paid over ADES
on the basis of register entries and not the anscactually collected. In return, a 4.1% withholdisgapplied to
the sums paid over to CADES to cover assessmentaltettion costs (0.5%) and the cost of tax reidast and
bad debts (3.6%), as provided for by Article 16&Fmnce’s General Tax Codédde Général des Impts

Amounts collected by CADES in respect of the CRD& reported under “Other operating income” in thefip
and loss account. Assessment and collection costeeorded under “Other operating charges”.

= Accrual basis accounting

CADES applies the accruals principle in accordamitle accounting standards applicable to credititutsbns and
Articles L114-5 and D-114-4-4 of the Social Segu@ode establishing the principle whereby sociauséy
agencies shall maintain accounting records oneivaile-payable basis.

Accordingly, CRDS contributions paid to collectiagencies are included in the accounts for the gedgardless

of the date on which these amounts were actuallgated. So as to be able to recognise this incantedeferred
income at the balance sheet date, CADES accrussintbome on the basis of a notification providedthy
collecting agencies indicating amounts assessethéperiod not collected at the balance sheet alateCRDS
contributions not yet collected by ACOSS. For tlensonthly closing at 30 June, as CADES receives no
notification from the collecting agencies it esttegmaccrued income based on payments receivedyin Ju
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Provisions against outstanding CRDS contributiores reotified to CADES by ACOSS. These provisions are
calculated on a statistical basis applying an anrate determined by reference to an ageing arsalykithe
receivables. They are deducted from gross amoaoé&vable as reported in the balance sheet. As GAlREeives
no notification from ACOSS for the position as d@ 3une, it determines provisions against outstandin
contributions on the same basis as at the preyieaisend.

Regarding the collection of the CRDS contributiomste that at no time does CADES act as primarkecr; all
the resources to which it is entitled are remitigdhird parties, first and foremost ACOSS, follaugy the offices
of the DGFIP Direction Générale des Finances PubliquedPublic Finances Directorate).

CADES' responsibility is confined to verifying thtte sums transferred agree to the accounting ersdhised.
The primary collecting agencies are responsibldarborsferring the funds, for verifying the tax bafe adjusting
tax bases when applicable and for recovering paess$,dn return for which these agencies receivenauneration
equivalent to 0.5% of the sums collected.

Accordingly, CADES’ responsibility at revenue levisl limited to substantive verifications of the agnting
vouchers produced by the collecting agencies.

5.2 Supplementary social security contribution

Act No. 2008-1330 on the funding of the social sggwsystem for 2009 extended the mission of CADBS
entrusting to it an additional €27 billion of dahtrespect of the health insurance deficit (€14llioh), old age
pension deficit (€8.8 billion) and senior citizesslidarity fund (€4 billion).

In accordance with the Organic Law of 2 August 2088 French Parliament voted an increase in resswso as
not to extend the life of CADES. These new resaiamrespond to a portion of the supplementaryasgeicurity
contribution Contribution Sociale Généralisée — CSGince 2009, this has been paid to CADES at &te of
0.2%. From 2011 it was increased to 0.48% and them 1 January 2016 to 0.60% for CSG on all taxable
employment income, unemployment and similar besiefihd income from property and investments; WBEG

on profits from gaming was increased from 1 Jan@@i6 to 0.30%.

This is a broad-based tax levied on employmentrimcand employment income replacements as wellcasnie
from property, investments and gaming.

The difference in tax base between the CRDS and @8i@ly concerns revenue from the sale of precioatals
and gems, from gaming and from family benefits.

The payment circuits and methods of accountinglferCSG are the same as for the CRDS.

5.3 Social levies on income from property and invasents

Act No. 2010-1594 of 20 December 2010 allocate@ADES, starting in 2011, a 1.3% share of the sdeidks
on the income from property and investments refeteein Articles 245-14 and 245-15 of the Sociat By
Code. The rate for these levies is set at 5.4%oas 1 January 2012.

With effect from 1 January 2016, the payment oPd & social levies on income from property and Btagents
was replaced by an increase of 0.12% in the podfdhe CSG paid to CADES.

5.4 Resources from the Retirement Reserve Fund

Under the 2011 Social Security Funding Alobi(de Financement de la Sécurité SocialeFSS 2010-1594 of 20
December 2010, the Retirement Reserve Flrmhds de Réserve pour les Retraites — FRRequired to pay
CADES a total of €29.4 billion in yearly instalmerdf €2.1 billion no later than 31 October eachryedth effect
from 1 January 2011 until 2024. The two instituaoncerned will draw up an agreement setting loititning
and terms and conditions governing these payments.

The annual income of €2.1 billion to be paid by BRR as from 2011 is recognised under income foipdriod. It
is paid in April of each year.
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FRR’s commitment to pay amounts for subsequentsyearecognised in off-balance sheet items undéeiOt
Commitments Received — Retirement Reserve Fund.

6. Private rental property

CADES has sold all the property transferred onrfuday 2000 to CADES in application of Article 9 ©fder No.
96-50 of 24 January 1996 and recorded under “Prppadowment” as a component of reserves.

Acting on behalf of CADES, CNAVTS managed the raaidights and obligations related to this propertsil the
expiration of the agreement between the two paoine31 December 2006.

Signed in December 1999, this agreement empoweMTS to do all that was necessary in connectiotin whe
administration of the properties.
Since 1 January 2007, disputes and claims haverbharaged internally by CADES.

CADES’ Accounting Officer records expenses and merecon the basis of the supporting documents stéairiay
the Authorising Officer.

7. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on di-owrkency basis and are measured in accordantte thé
following principles:

e Foreign currency transactions involving balancessl@d off-balance sheet items are measured inaguhe
rate of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date.

* The rates used at 31 December 2016, which corresjootihe reference rates communicated by the Earope
Central Bank, are indicated in the table below:

USD: 1.0541 SEK: 9.5525 GBP: 0.85618
AUD: 1.4596 NOK: 9.0863 MXN: 21.7719
CHF: 1.0739 NZD: 1.5158 HKD: 8.1751
CAD: 1.4188 TRY: 3.7072  JPY: 123.4000
ZAR: 14.4570 SGD: 1.5234 CNY: 7.3202

e Foreign currency income and charges are transiate@uro at the exchange rate ruling on the d&enthey
were recognised in the profit and loss account.

« Realised and unrealised foreign exchange gaindaasgs are recognised in the profit and loss adcasin
operating income from banking transactions or dpegaharges on banking transactions.

8. Repurchase agreements with securities delivered

Top-grade securities are acquired by CADES undaurohase agreements for the purpose of investingade
cash balances.
Securities received under these agreements argedpmder loans and advances to credit institation

9. Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are accounted for under the histocmsi convention. Tangible fixed assets are demiextiand
intangible fixed assets amortised over their edtichaseful life.

Tangible fixed assets consist mainly of office gguent and computer equipment.

Intangible fixed assets include software.

10. Bonds
Bonds issued by CADES are reported as a liabititthe balance sheet at their nominal value (if eetk at par)
plus accrued interest. Foreign currency bondsrarstiated into euro at the exchange rate prevailinthe balance
sheet date.
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Bonds indexed to inflation (French consumer priogek excluding tobacco for all households in Mebtan
France) are measured by reference to a predefiriledion benchmark on the balance sheet date,tieguh the
recognition of a redemption premium that is repbdse a liability.

Inflation benchmarks:

CPI as at 31 December 2016: 100.36935

Cadesi 2017 index: 1.11496
Cadesi 2019 index: 1.15676
Cadesi 2021 index: 1.05363
Cadesi 2024 index: 1.0332

When bonds are issued at a premium, this premiumedsunted for as deferred charges and is theredpated
under prepayments and accrued income in the baklmeet. These charges are recognised to the prafifoss
account over the life of the bonds under bankingraijing charges.

When bonds are issued at a discount, this disdewattcounted for as deferred income. This incomedsgnised
to the profit and loss account over the life of le&ds under banking operating income.

All costs relating to bond issues are charged ¢optfofit and loss account on the date of issuerapdrted under
“fees paid”.

11. Interest rate and currency swaps

Transactions involving forward financial instrumgnéntered into for the purpose of hedging interatt and
currency exposure, are recognised in accordandethgt regulations issued by the French BankingFindncial
Regulatory Committee. Commitments in respect ofsehdransactions are reported as off-balance sheet
commitments at the contract’'s nominal value. Acdimgnprinciples applied differ according to the urat of these
instruments and management intention at inception.

Transactions consist mainly of interest rate swaps currency swaps entered into for hedging pugdséerest
rate swaps are entered into in compliance withrisle management policy defined by the Board of Cies.
Currency swaps are entered into only for the pmddedging CADES’ foreign exchange exposures.

Income and charges arising on forward financialrimsents entered into for the purpose of hedginghanaging
the global interest rate exposure are recognisedofit or losspro rata temporis

Gains and losses on hedging designed to reducestheesulting from a particular asset or liabildye taken to
profit or loss and included under interest recdivamd similar income or interest payable and sintharges to
match income or charges recognised in respecedfi¢kged item.

As regards balancing cash payments arising fronpsweatered into to hedge a debt instrument on fiwgphe
portion covering issuance costs in respect of tderlying instrument is taken to profit and lossewlthe cash
payment is recognised. This accounting methodyfagéflects the asset value of issues transformeehibgring into
swaps involving cash payments and results in theuatrequivalent to the issuance costs being resedrb profit
and losgro rata temporis

12. Interest rate futures

Firm macro hedging transactions on organised msuk&trman Bund and Bobl) are recognised in accosdaith
the regulations issued by the French Banking andrféial Regulatory Committee. Sales of financialifes (Euro
Bund and Euro Bobl futures) are recognised as afifice sheet items for their nominal value. Maugitls are
recognised directly to profit or loss. Initial marg are accounted for as deposits paid and repagessets in the
balance sheet. Finally, brokerage fees — whichessmt trading fees on the sale or purchase of Bon8sbls —
are recognised directly to profit or loss.

13. Provisions

No general provisions for liabilities and charges eecognised by CADES. When appropriate, provision
respect of identified risks are set aside in acaocd with applicable accounting principles.
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14. Taxation

CADES is not assessed to business taxes (corpor#dio value added tax and local business tax)oor t
apprenticeship tax. The only tax it pays is therpbhyax.

Note that profits on the sale of property trang@ry the social security agencies did not give tasthe payment
of corporation tax.

15. Counterparty risk

CADES'’ exposure to counterparty risk is limitedtioee types of transactions: investment transastioff-balance
sheet transactions and credit line transactions.

For all three types of transactions, CADES hasegsignarket agreements modelled on the master agn¢einasvn
up by the French Banking Associatidréfiération Bancaire Francaise FBF) providing for daily margin calls
(for investment transactions) and weekly margitsadbr off-balance sheet transactions).

1. Investment transactions

CADES invests cash balances mainly in securitidsveted under repurchase agreements but may algo bu
government securities outright. In exchange for kb@n extended to a counterparty, CADES receivéls fu
ownership of a government security (OAT, BTAN, BTd¥)government-guaranteed security over the terthef
repurchase agreement. Most repurchase agreementegotiated with French Treasury bond deal®pe¢ialiste

en Valeurs du Trésor — SYar with counterparties with a double-A rating.

Margins calls are carried out daily by CADES toyide additional protection against significant fiuations in
market prices for the securities received as @kt

2. Off-balance sheet transactions

To manage its interest rate risk and eliminatectimeency risk, CADES enters into transactions m dlerivatives
markets involving instruments such as interestsai@ps, currency swaps and asset swaps.

By using triggers set by reference to each couatgrjs rating and by carrying out daily margin salCADES
significantly reduces the residual risk of defaultthese instruments.

16. Transactions involving investment securities

The portfolio of investment securities is valuedagtordance with Regulation 90-01 (as amendedgdsby the
French Banking and Financial Regulatory Commitiggs portfolio, which consists of fixed income gowment
securities, is reported in the balance sheet umdasury bills and other bills eligible for refirang with central
banks.

Securities are reported in the balance sheet at dloguisition cost. Interest income is reportedleminterest
receivable and similar income from bonds and diilked income securities.

Unrealised losses give rise to a provision for impant determined by reference to the most recaategl price.
These provisions are determined individually.

Provisions for impairment set aside and reversatl gains and losses on the sale of investment siesudre
reported in the profit and loss account under gantslosses on investment securities.
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NOTES

BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2016, the balance sheet showed detdts of €12.63 billion for total debt of €148t8kion
resulting in negative reserves of €135.83 billion.

ASSETS

Note 1: Treasury and interbank transactions

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
CENTRAL BANKS 1,636.81 2,264.96 1,689.95
Central banks 1,636.81 2,264.96 1,689.95
TREASURY BILLS AND OTHER BILLS
ELIGIBLE FOR REFINANCING WITH 4,000.00 9,000.00 7,000.06
CENTRAL BANKS
S](c))\r/]?rr]gment securities with a maturity of less tBan 4,000.00 9.000.00 7.000.00
Accrued interest 0.00 0.00 0.06
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT
INSTITUTIONS 0.03 520.79 0.38
Repayable at sight 0.03 0.18 0.38
Debit balances on ordinary accounts 0.03 0.18 0.38
Securities received under open repurchase agresment 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accrued interest 0.00 0.00 0.00
Repayable at term 0.00 520.61 0.00
S_ecuntles re_ce|ved under term repurchase agresment 0.00 520 61 0.00
with a maturity of less than 3 months
Of which: Treasury bills 0.00 0.00 0.00
Bonds 0.00 0.00 0.00
Own securities 0.00 520.61 0.00
Accrued interest 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 5,636.84 11,785.75 8,690.39

NB. Balances with central banks correspond to the-denominated account held by CADES with Banque dade.

Note 2: Intangible and tangible fixed assets

(€ millions) Gross Acquisitions Disposals Gross Amortisation ~ Net book Net book value Net book value
value at 1 value at 31 and value at at 31 December at 31 December
January December depreciation 31 2015 2014
2016 2016 Decembe
r 2016
Intangible 0.18 0.00 0.00 0.18 0.18 0.00 0.00 0.00
assets
Software 0.18 0.00 0.00 0.18 0.18 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tangible assets 0.36 0.01 0.00 0.37 0.29 0.08 0.09 0.08
Sundry 0.36 0.01 0.00 0.37 0.29 0.08 0.09 0.08
equipment
Total 0.54 0.01 0.00 0.55 0.47 0.08 0.09 0.08

Intangible and tangible assets reflect the valuthefsoftware and equipment acquired by CADES phet¢lated
amortisation and depreciation.
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Note 3: Other assets

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
SUNDRY DEBTORS 167.13 185.89 136.22
Deposits paid by way of initial margins 1.41 3.20 0D
- Deposits 0.02 2.40 0.01

- Accrued interest 1.39 0.80 0.08
Ou_tstandlng CRDS and CSG contributions and social 165.72 182 69 136.13
levies to be collected

- Gross amounts receivable 653.42 670.02 631.80
- Provisions (487.70) (487.33) (495.67)
Other debtors in respect of financial transactions 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other debtors in respect of operating charges 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other sundry debtors — CNAV 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Gross amounts receivable 0.41 0.61 0.74

- Provisions (0.412) (0.61) (0.74)
Total 167.13 185.89 136.22

Other assets comprise:

- outstanding CRDS and CSG contributions and soefkes$ to be collected by ACOSS amounting to
€165.72 million. Provisions totalling €487.70 moli have been deducted from the gross amounts

receivable of €653.42 million.

- areceivable of €0.41 million, consisting of thddpae of damages and interest amounting to €0.8®mi
claimed from a buyer who reneged on a commitmemutgchase a group of buildings and sundry debtor
balances totalling €0.02 million due from tenamsl duyers for which legal proceedings are under. way
These amounts were provisioned in full at 31 Decaa2016.

Movements in provisions against outstanding CRD$@8G contributions and social levies to be cadle@nd in
respect of sundry debtors are detailed in the tadliew:

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
Provisions brought forward 487.94 496.41 466.46
Impact of accounting method changes 0.00 0.00 10.52
Provisions set aside — property 0.00 0.00 0.00
Proy|5|on_s set aside — CRDS and CSG contributiods a 14.68 2173 19.98
social levies

Provisions reversed — property (0.20) (0.13) (0.13)
Proy|S|on_s reversed — CRDS and CSG contributiods an (14.31) (30.07) (0.41)
social levies

Provisions carried forward 488.11 487.94 496.41

19/44



Note 4: Prepayments and accrued income

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
ACCRUED INCOME 1,662.65 1,402.54 1,322.43
On forward interest rate instruments 732 7.44 10.32
On forward currency instruments 308.04 244.46 208.87
On CRDS and CSG revenues 1,347.26 1,147.68 1,136.52
On revenue from social levies on income from prgper 0.03 296 (33.28)
and investments

On property sales 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other accrued income 0.00 0.00 0.00
CONTINGENT LOSSES AND LOSSES TO BE

SPREAD ON FORWARD FINANCIAL 2144 28.19 440
INSTRUMENTS

DEEERRED CHARGES 215.00 256.15 267.73
Issuance premiums on bonds and EMTN 215.00 256.15 267.73
Other deferred charges 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREPAYMENTS 17.11 6.47 6.86
Prepaid administrative expenses 0.02 0.01 0.03
Prepaid interest on negotiable debt instruments 09aL7. 6.46 6.83
Prepaid interest on bonds 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other prepayments 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER 4,908.63 4,593.59 3,029.59
Currency adjustment accounts 4,908.63 4,593.59 3,029.59
Property rental adjustment account 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sundry 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 6,824.83 6,287.54 4,631.01

Prepayments and accrued income consist of transaciiffecting the profit and loss account indepatigef the
date on which the corresponding income is paicdbflected. They include:

- accrued income relating to CRDS and CSG contribstitor €1,347.26 million, interest rate financial
instruments for €7.32 million and currency finahamstruments for €308.04 million;

- issuance premiums on bonds and EMTN amounting 16 #3llion to be recognised in profit and loss over
time;

- prepayments amounting to €17.11 million, which ¢sinsnainly of prepaid interest on the issue of
negotiable debt instruments;

- foreign currency adjustment accounts amounting4®@3.63 million, being technical accounts used to
recognise to profit and loss adjustments arisinghermeasurement of off-balance sheet commitments.
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LIABILITIES AND RESERVES
In respect of liabilities, a distinction is maddvseen CADES’ reserves and its other liabilities.

Reserves, which consist of the profit and loss aetbrought forward (€-150,441.15 million), the fitror loss for
the period (€14,426.39 million) and the propertg@mment (€181.22 million), came to €-135,833.53ioml

The profit and loss account brought forward brokevil as follows:

Reference text Amount (€ millions)
Order No. 96-50 of 24 January 1996 (20,885.52)
Act No. 97-1164 of 19 December 1997 (13,263.06)
Act No. 2004-810 of 13 August 2004 (47,310.00)
Act No. 2008-1330 of 17 December 2008 (27,000.00)
Act No. 2010-1594 of 20 December 2010 (65,300,00)
Demgzgség"ed 9 Act No. 2011-1906 of 21 December 2011 (2,466.64)
Decree No. 2012-329 of 7 March 2012 (6,648.05)
Decree No. 2013-482 of 7 June 2013 (7,718.57)
Decree No. 2014-97 of 3 February 2014 (10,000J00)
Decree No. 2015-170 of 13 February 2015 (10,000100)
Decree No. 2016-170 of 13 February 2016 (23,609,05)
Payment from ACOSS by way of an adjustment of tHiteefrom 64.72
1999 to 2006
Accumulated profits generated by CADES between k862014
and impact of previous accounting method changes 83,695.02
Profit and loss account brought forward (150,441.15)

Liabilities, which amounted to €148,364.01 milli@ 31 December 2016, consist mainly of debts talitre
institutions amounting to €1,003.37 million, debtsdenced by securities totalling €140,767.30 oni)iguarantee
deposits received and others totalling €5,329.78amiand accruals and deferred income totalling263.56
million.

Note 5: Treasury and interbank transactions

At Decemb3(-::}r 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
2016
(€ millions) Upto3 Over3 Overlyear Over5 Total Total Total
months  months and andupto5 years
up to 1 year years

AMOUNTS OWED TO CENTRAL BANKS
Amounts owed to credit 4.14 1.23 0.00  998.00 1,003.37 1,003.46 1,003.37
institutions
At sight 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Credit balances on ordinary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
accounts
At term 4.14 1.23 0.00 998.00 1,003.37 1,003.46 038,87
Securities given under repurchase 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
agreements
Accounts and deposits 0.00 0.00 0.00 998.00 998.00 998.00 998.00
Of which: Euro 0.00 0.00 0.00 998.00 998.00 998.00 998.00

Other currencies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 00.0
Accrued interest 4.14 1.23 0.00 0.00 5.37 5.46 5.37
Total 4.14 1.23 0.00 998.00 1,003.37 1,003.46 1003
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Note 6: Debts evidenced by securities

At 31 December 2016 31 December 31 December
2015 2014
(€ millions) Up to 3 months Over 3 months Over 1year Over5 years Total Total Total
anduptol andupto5
year years

NEGOTIABLE DEBT 8,431.71 6,374.08
INSTRUMENTS 11,117.76 2,712.04 0.00 264.00 14,093.80
Treasury bills
denominated in euro 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 176.30
Treasury bills
denominated in other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 116.65 0.00
currencies
EL'J‘EN denominated in 0.00 0.00 0.00 264.00 264.00 264.00 264.00
Commercial paper 529.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 529.00 0.00 0.00
denominated in euro
Commercial paper
denominated in other 10,587.21 2,711.95 0.00 0.00 13,299.16 8,049.40 32513
currencies
Other negotiable debt
instruments denominated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
in foreign currencies
Accrued interest 1.55 0.09 0.00 0.00 1.64 1.66 1.65
BONDS 6,822.90 8,767.52 68,972.11 42,110.97 1265073 129,413.81 131,869.13
Sonds and EMTN 0.00 6,029.93 46,485.80 34,111.40 86,627.13 91O74.  98,235.32

enominated in euro
Bonds and EMTN
denominated in other 5,816.26 2,561.41 22,486.31 7,999.57 38,863.55 03638 31,998.10
currencies
Accrued interest 1,006.64 176.18 0.00 0.00 1,182.82 1,433.95 1,635.71
Total 17,940.66 11,479.56 68,972.11 42,374.97 18030 137,845.52 138,243.21

A euro issue for €200 million with a €100 milliomp maturing on 20 December 2025 is subject to early

redemption at the counterparty’s option from 2021.

Debts evidenced by securities are analysed below:

They comprise negotiable debt instruments totalléig,093.80 million, and bonds and similar instratee
totalling €126,673.50 million.

Bonds and similar instruments are issued under:

- a French issuance programme for which the ligm@130 billion;
- a UK issuance programme for which the limit i&€sllion;

- an Australian issuance programme for which thmt is AUD 6 billion;
- a BMTN programme for which the limit is €10 bdl;
- a stand-alone programme.

All'in all, at 31 December 2016 debts evidenceddgurities maturing within one year totalled €29,22 million
and by those maturing in more than five years €237 million, compared with €26,729.48 million and
€56,220.51 million, respectively, at 31 Decembelt®Mebt due to mature at between one and fivesyinareased
from €54,895.53 million at 31 December 2015 to 888,11 million at 31 December 2016.

The tables below detail borrowings (in millions) faypgramme.

Nominal
Programme Issue date Maturity date E/izlsuuz Currency Nominal interest rate ISIN code
currency)
09/12/2004 25/07/2019 2,400 EUR CADESI 1.85% FRAB37554
itlgzcej_ 21/12/2004 25/10/2019 5,000 EUR 4.00% FR001013374
27/05/2005 25/10/2020 4,000 EUR 3.75% FR0010198036
28/11/2011 25/04/2022 151 EUR 4.00% )
29/07/2011 19/12/2025 615 EUR 3.914% )
25/11/2011 19/12/2025 232 EUR 4.50% ]
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BMTN 02/05/2012 02/05/2025 50 EUR Formula-based variable rate FR0120634516

10/05/2012 19/12/2025 214 EUR Formula-based variable rate FR0120634581

UK 30/01/2014 30//01/2017 5,000 usb 1.125% XS10236%326
12/04/2012 12/04/2017 2,000 uUsD 2.125% US128028AD
29/01/2013 29/01/2018 3,500 uUsbD 1.375% US12802E3AF
07/03/2011 07/03/2018 1,000 EUR 3.25% XS059978934
12/03/2015 12/03/2018 5,000 usb 1.25% XS1200751367
15/03/2016 15/03/2018 1,000 usDh 3-month UsSibt +38bp XS1379591602
28/01/2016 28/01/2019 3,500 usb 1.50% XS186308
17/04/2013 17/04/2020 1,000 uUsD 2.00% US12802DAG1
28/07/2015 28/07/2020 3,000 usb 1.875% XS1266786810
22/03/2016 22/03/2021 3,250 usbh 2.000% XS588360
12/02/2015 12/02/2022 3,500 usb 1.875% XS118818778
06/02/2014 06/02/2017 550 GBP 1.375% FR0011725381
06/02/2015 06/02/2017 3,000 CNY 3.800% FR0012498350
20/03/2007 20/03/2017 450 MXN 7.930% FR0010449355
13/04/2012 13/04/2017 76,900 JPY 0.753% FR0013@B4
12/04/2007 25/04/2017 3,800 EUR 4.125% FR0010456434
28/07/2006 25/07/2017 2,000 EUR CADES| 1.85% FR0010359679
07/03/2008 20/12/2017 35 GBP 3-month GBP LIBOR - 0.3705% FR0010594366
05/03/2013 05/03/2018 100 EUR 3-month EURIBOR + 0.10% FR0011435213
27/02/2015 07/03/2018 600 GBP 1.00% FR0012560084
04/04/2013 25/05/2018 3,000 EUR 1.00% FR001145968
20/01/2011 15/10/2018 450 GBP 3.75% FR0010994376
26/10/2006 26/10/2018 400 CAD 4.45% FR0010386110
28/11/2016 28/11/2018 28. usbh 8.00% FR0013220407

FR 05/03/2013 05/03/2019 200 EUR 3-month EURIBOR + 0.18% FR0011435261
11/02/2016 07/03/2019 50 GBP 1.000% FR0013113099
20/02/2014 25/05/2019 5,000 EUR 1.125% FR00114462
28/11/2016 28/11/2019 22. usDh 8.000% FR0013220415
10/06/2009 25/04/2020 4,250 EUR 4.250% FR0010767566
02/07/2010 02/07/2020 200 EUR 3-month EURIBOR + 0.23% FR0010917534
25/10/2004 25/07/2020 1,000 EUR Max[0;((1+TEC100-1%)"0.25)-1] FR0010120436
03/02/2016 25/11/2020 4,50 EUR 0.050% FR0013109006
26/10/2010 26/10/2020 1,000 usb 3.00% FR0010956565
21/04/2009 21/04/2021 200 CHF 3.00% CH0100525382
29/06/2010 25/04/2021 5,750 EUR 3.375% FR0010915660
10/02/2011 25/07/2021 3,255 EUR CADESI 1.50% FROOBG672
25/07/2006 25/10/2021 6,280 EUR 4.375% FR00103479
20/06/2012 20/06/2022 50 EUR FR0011270644

Formula-based variable rate
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26/09/2012 25/10/2022 4,950 EUR 2.50% FR001133318
22/03/2013 22/03/2023 420 AUD 5.335% FR0011449776
19/04/2011 19/04/2023 200 CHF 2.375% CH0127860192
18/04/2011 25/04/2023 5,424 EUR 4.125% FR00110870
23/01/2015 25/05/2023 3,850 EUR 0.500% FR0012467991
18/09/2013 18/09/2023 2,000 NOK 4.080% FR00118654
29/11/2013 29/11/2023 50 EUR Formula-based bhrisate FR0011627827
18/12/2013 18/12/2023 50 EUR Formula-based blrimate FR0011649169
19/06/2013 25/01/2024 3,250 EUR 2.375% FR00115213
14/02/2014 14/02/2024 145 AUD 5% FR0011737709
27/02/2012 27/02/2024 153 EUR Formula-basedibtgirate FR0011202514
20/03/2014 20/03/2024 3,000 uUsbD 3.375% XS10463068
02/07/2012 02/07/2024 60 EUR Formula-based blrimate FR0011277383
09/02/2012 25/07/2024 3,250 EUR CADESI 1.50% FRA®8787
16/09/2014 25/11/2024 5,500 EUR 1.375% FR00121398
21/09/2016 21/12/2024 160 EUR 0.120% FR0013201928
18/02/2015 18/02/2025 100 EUR Formula-based varietie FR0012538114
19/12/2014 19/06/2025 125 AUD 3.750% FR0012398998
27/06/2012 27/06/2025 194 EUR 3.202% FR0011276427
18/08/2011 18/08/2025 812.5 EUR 3.625% FR00116922
15/11/2011 15/11/2025 800 NOK 4.700% FR0011142215
01/12/2011 01/12/2025 800 NOK 5.120% FR0011153097
09/03/2011 09/12/2025 150 CHF 2.50% CH0124739902
15/03/2012 15/12/2025 1,000 NOK 4.95% FR001128395
01/02/2012 15/12/2025 5,850 EUR 4.00% FR0011192392
14/02/2013 15/12/2025 1,000 NOK 4.25% FR0011421759
12/07/2011 19/12/2025 800 NOK 4.80% FR0011074178
27/06/2012 19/12/2025 2,000 NOK 4.84% FR001122673
01/04/2011 20/12/2025 300 EUR 3.80% FR0011027929
21/06/2012 21/12/2025 1,000 NOK 4.52% FR001127152

Note 6a: Analysis of transactions in euro and foren currencies before and after hedging

This note analyses the effect of hedging transastan the initial debt and breaks down interessréefore and
after hedging. It provides both accounting androial information related to the value and hedgifinstruments

at maturity.
(in millions of Initial debt Hedging transactions Final debt
euros)
Foreign Euros Foreign Euros Foreign Euros
currencies currencies currencies
Euro-denominated 88,418 47,467 136,185
debt
Foreign currency- Value in euros at Value in euros
denominated debt 31 December at 31 December
2016 2016
CHF 550 512 (550) (512)
GBP 2,135 2,494 (2,135) (2,494)
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JPY 76,900 623 (76,900) (623) 0 0
usD 48,779 46,276 (48,779) (46,276) 0 0
HKD 0 0 0 0 0
SEK 0 0 0 0 0 0
AUD 746 511 (746) (511) 0 0
NOK 9,400 1,035 (9,400) (1,035) 0 0
NzZD 0 0 0 0
CNY 3,000 410 (3,000) (410) 0 0
CAD 400 282 (400) (282) 0 0
MXN 450 20 (450) (20) 0 0
Sub-total foreign

currencies 52,163 (52,163) 0
Total 140,581 (4,396) 136,185

The table above provides a breakdown of the init@hinal debt by issuance currency. Since all @etiens in
foreign currencies have been hedged, the debt @EAis effectively entirely in euro. Hedging tracisans have

enabled CADES to eliminate the impact of exchamge fluctuations on its debt.

The table below shows the breakdown of CADES’ deptinterest rate type. Hedging impacts the initial
breakdown, such that in the final analysis, S§4%f the debt bears fixed rates, 37% floating rated 9% rates

indexed to inflation.

Breakdown of debt in euro and foreign currencies bire and after hedging

Initial debt Hedging transactions Final debt
(€ millions) Foreign Euros Total % Foreign Euros Foreign Euros Total %
currencie currencies currencies
s
Fixed rates
Negotlable debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
instruments
Bonds, EMTN and BMTN 37,874 73,233 111,107 (37,874) (61) 0 73,172 3,17
Private placements 0 998 998 0 0 0 998 998
Macro hedging swaps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total fixed rates 37,874 74,231 112,105 79 (37,874) (61) 0 74,170 174, 54
Floating rates
Negotiable debt 13,299 529 13,828 (13,299) 12,539 0 13,068 13,068
instruments
Bonds, EMTN and BMTN 990 1,864 2,854 (990) 35,289 0 37,153 37,153
Private placements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Macro hedging swaps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total floating rates 14,289 2,393 16,682 13 (14,289) 47,828 0 50,221 2240, 37
Indexed rates
Bonds 0 11,794 11,794 0 0 0 11,794 11,794
Macro hedging swaps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total indexed rates 0 11,794 11,794 8 0 0 0 11,794 11,794 9
Total 52,163 88,418 140,581 100 (4,396) 0 136,185 B36,1 100

(1) Includes €325.54 million that correspondshi® lhedging of swaps cancellable at the initiatfvthe counterparties. If
the swap is cancelled by the counterparty, the éebghgsition reverts to a variable rate. Based ork@taates at 31
December 2016, the swap cancellation options hglkeblinterparties were significantly out of the mgmmaking the

likelihood of a reversion to a variable rate vittyail.
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Note 7: Other liabilities

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
DEPOSITS RECEIVED BY WAY OF INITIAL

MARGINS 5,145.35 4,556.37 2,905.05
- Deposits 5,145.35 4,556.37 2,905.05
- Accrued interest 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER CREDITORS IN RESPECT OF

FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS 0.10 0.30 1.57
OTHER CREDITORS IN RESPECT OF

OPERATING CHARGES 184.33 191.70 118.78
Payments to the State 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tax 0.00 0.02 0.02
Social security 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trade creditors 0.03 0.04 0.05
Sundry creditors — ACOSS 184.30 191.64 118.71
Other sundry creditors 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 5,329.78 4,748.37 3,025.40

Other liabilities correspond mainly to:

* Deposits received by way of initial margins in resipof contracts on forward markets and repurchase
agreements put in place to hedge counterpartyaisiunting to €5,145.35 million at 31 December 2016

e Commission payable on commercial paper amountirg®td0 million;

e The credit balance with ACOSS amounting to €184n80on, consisting of taxpayer credit notes reegiv
from ACOSS.

Note 8: Accruals and deferred income

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
ACCRUALS 21.88 31.36 43.82
Accruals on forward interest rate instruments 6.24 6.33 5.62
Accruals on forward currency instruments 6.94 17.22 31.05
Fees payable in respect of market transactions 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accruals in respect of operating charges 0.25 0.25 0.18
Accruals in respect of CRDS and CSG collectionsost 7.33 6.20 6.29
Accruals in respect of revenue from social levies o 0.00 0.56 0.47
income from property and investments

Other accruals 1.12 0.80 0.21
CONTINGENT GAINS AND GAINS TO BE SPREAD 40.86 49.95 33.99
ON FORWARD FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

UNEARNED INCOME 596.40 639.66 729.04
Issuance premiums on bonds 595.74 638.76 728.93
On government securities 0.00 0.00 0.11
On foreign currency transactions 0.66 0.05 0.00
Other unearned income 0.00 0.85 0.00
OTHER 604.42 478.77 499.57
Currency adjustment accounts 597.46 478.77 499.57
Sundry 6.96 0.00 0.00
Total 1,263.56 1,199.74 1,306.42

Accruals and deferred income consist of transastadfecting the profit and loss account indeperigaftthe date
on which the corresponding income is paid or ctdldc
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They include notably:

- Accrued expenses in respect of interest ratepswamounting to €6.24 million, forward currency
transactions for €6.94 million, and CRDS and CSEi@33 million;

- Balancing cash payments on currency swaps anmguiot €40.86 million that are to be spread;

- Unearned income, corresponding to premiums ol igsues (€596.40 million);

- Currency adjustment accounts amounting to €®milion, being technical accounts used to recegno
profit and loss adjustments arising on the measainewf off-balance sheet commitments.

Note 8a: Provision accounts

Provisions for liabilities and charges include pstmns for:
- redundancy indemnities,
- remuneration of days saved by CADES employees,
- the consequences of the European Court of Justirglgment of 26 February 2015 concerning the
reimbursement by CADES of CRDS, CSG and social eexgrpayments (see Note 14),
- the reduction of CSG and CRDS income.

At 31 December Set aside Reversed 31 December
(€ millions) 2015 2016
Provisions 113.06 8.00 22.65 98.40
Provision for redundancy indemnities 0.27 0.02 0.00 0.29
Provision for time savings account 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Provision for remuneration 0.06 0.00 0.06 0.00
Provision for liabilities

Ruyter judgment 43.02 0.00 21.99 21.02
Reduction of CSG and CRDS income 69.70 7.97 0.59 77.08
Total 113.06 8.00 22.65 98.40
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

In arriving at the profit for the period, net bamgiincome is reported separately from other opsgaticome and

charges.

(€ millions)

Net banking income

Exceptional income items

Other operating income and charges

Gross operating profit and net profit for the pdrio

(2,329.99)

0.03

16,756.35
14,426.39

A specific mission has been entrusted to CADESckvis to extinguish a debt over its scheduled tdre profit

for the year measures its capacity to reduce its debt.

Net banking income

Net banking income consists of the cost of deletitikome generated from cash positions and thproét or loss

on financial transactions.

Note 9: Banking income

Period ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH CREDIT 160.33 39.19 13.69
INSTITUTIONS

Interest receivable — Demand loans and advances and 0.00 0.01 032
open repurchase agreements

Interest from ordinary accounts in debit 0.00 0.01 0.13
Interest from loans 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest from securities delivered under open relpase 0.00 0.00 019
agreements

Interest receivable — Term loans, advances and 0.00 0.02 260
repurchase agreements

Interest from loans denominated in euro 0.00 0.00 .000
Interest from loans denominated in foreign curresci 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest from securities delivered under repurchase 0.00 0.02 260
agreements

Other interest receivable 160.33 39.16 10.77
INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

FROM BONDS AND OTHER FIXED INCOME 0.00 0.09 3.52
SECURITIES

Interest from fixed income securities 0.00 0.00 00.0
Interest from government securities 0.00 0.09 3.52
OTHER INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR 925 79 83739 629 91
INCOME

Amortisation of premiums on issue 109.77 117.49 421
Net profit on hedging transactions 816.02 719.90 8.5D
Profit on repurchase of own securities 0.00 0.00 000.
Total 1,086.12 876.67 647.12

Banking income, which amounted to €1,086.12 millioonsists of:
* Net profit on hedging transactions amounting to€82 million;

* Interest receivable and similar income from tratieas with credit institutions amounting to €160.33

million; and

* The amortisation of bond premiums on issue amognar€109.77 million.
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Note 10: Cost of debt

Period ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR

CHARGES ON TRANSACTIONS WITH CREDIT 40.79 43.87 42.03
INSTITUTIONS

Interest payable - Demand loans and open 0.06 0.04 0.03
repurchase agreements

Interest on ordinary accounts in credit 0.04 0.03 .020
Interest on overnight loans 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest on securities delivered under open re@seh 0.02 0.01 0.01
agreements

Interest payable — Term loans and repurchase 4065 43.46 4141
agreements

Interest on CDC loan (transfer of debt) 0.00 0.00 .000
Interest on multi-currency credit 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest on securities delivered under repurchase 010 291 0.86
agreements

Interest on private placements 40.55 40.55 40.55
Other interest payable and similar charges 0.08 073 0.59
INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR

CHARGES ON BONDS AND OTHER FIXED 3,337.64 3,547.85 3,828.54
INCOME SECURITIES

Interest on debts evidenced by certificates 3,33%46 3,547.85 3,828.54
Ienl}re(;gst on negotiable debt instruments denominated 776 6.84 10.12
Interest on nggotlable debt instruments denominated 77 37 18.10 18.10
other currencies

Interesf[ on bo.nds and equivalent securities 2.363.06 2.667.98 2.965.12
denominated in euros

Interesf[ on bo.nds and equwallent securities 78122 78333 71711
denominated in other currencies

Other charges on debt evidenced by securities 308.2 71.60 118.09
Other interest payable and similar charges 0.00 000 0.00
FEES PAYABLE 37.66 26.87 27.47
Fees on term loans with credit institutions 22.29 .557 0.29
Fees on negotiable debt instruments issued 0.00 8 0.7 2.00
Fees on bonds 15.32 18.37 24.87
Other fees on securities transactions 0.05 0.17 103
Other fees 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 3,416.09 3,618.59 3,898.04

Interest payable and similar charges on CADES’ ,debich amounted to €3,416.09 million, decrease® 6%
from 31 December 2015 and consists of:

e Charges amounting to €3,337.64 million in respéciebts;

e Interest amounting to €40.79 million on transactiomith credit institutions, consisting of interest
private placements, securities delivered underrd@se agreements and margin calls; and

* Fees amounting to €37.66 million.

The decrease in interest and similar charges payahpared with 31 December 2015 was related tdebeease
in financing costs and in debt outstandings.
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Note 11: Gains and losses on trading securities

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
NET GAIN (LOSS) ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE

TRANSACTIONS 0.00 (0.10) (0.012)
Other foreign exchange transactions 0.00 (0.10) 01@).
Total 0.00 (0.10) (0.012)

In accordance with the requirements of Regulatidf0203 on the presentation of financial statemessised by
the French Accounting Standards Committee, gairmk lasses on instruments used to hedge interestarate
currency risks are reported under interest recévaihd similar income or interest payable and singharges (see
Note 9). The net profit on foreign exchange tratisas comprises solely gains and losses determimethe
periodic measurement of foreign currency accourgshave not been hedged.

Note 11la: Gains and losses on investment securit@sd equivalent

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
Gains (losses) on investment securities and equieat 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net gain (loss) on investment securities 0.00 0.00 0.00

Note 11b: Exchange rate gains and losses on managgmoperations

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014

Exchange rate gains and losses on 0.00 0.00 0.00
management operations

Exchange rate gains on foreign-currency invoices 00 0. 0.00 0.00

Exchange rate losses on foreign-currency 0.00 0.00 0.00

invoices
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Other operating income and charges

Other operating income and charges consist maingpecific income and charges dealt with by Order 86-50
of 24 January 1996 (CRDS contributions, CSG, sdeidks on income from property and investmentgnpants
from the Retirement Reserve Fund, property asdes sad payments to the State and social secuniglirig
organisations), general operating charges and degit;n, amortisation and impairment charges on-cumnent
assets.

Note 12: CRDS revenues

The table below details revenue allocated to CADBEer Article 6 of Order No. 96-50 of 24 Januarp@ @fter
deducting assessment and collection costs andslasseoutstanding CRDS contributions (write-offs,iweas,
cancellations and debt forgiveness).

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
NET CRDS REVENUES (Article 6) 6,942.78 6,819.82 6,632.61
CRDS contributions levied on wages and salaries 161654 6,090.91 5,924.12
CRDS contributions levied on property assets 301.81 271.68 260.07
CRDS contributions levied on investment income 227. 309.87 306.29
g(l;nli)ss contributions levied on sales of precious metad 423 3.96 3.75
CRDS contributions on gaming proceeds 147.96 143.40 138.38

CRDS exemption offsets

(travel vouchers and voluntary community services) 0.00 0.00 0.00

CRDS revenues, net of collection costs, amounte&® ©42.78 million.

CRDS levied on wages and salaries (which is maioliected by ACOSS) represents 88.75% of the t@RDS
collected by the offices of the Public Financesebiorate and levied mainly on capital (property angstment
income) represented 9.06%. CRDS on gaming prdiitisthe sale of precious metals represented 2.19%.

Repayments relating to amounts written off prioBfo December 1999 (pursuant to EC regulations @atetal
social security agreements) received from foreigintries have been paid over by CNAMTS to CADE®si81
December 1997 to the extent this does not createwadeficit or increase an existing deficit in theoks of
CNAMTS. Given that CNAMTS was in deficit from 1998 2012, the €216.77 million recovered during this
period was not paid over to CADES.

Since Act No. 2004-810 of 13 August 2004, no swelas been generated by the health insurance bodirthl
French social security system.
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Note 12a

The table below provides a breakdown of incomedadges relating to the CRDS at 31 December 2016.

CRDS REVENUES (Il CRDS COSTS (1 Net
(€ millions) revenues
(I-11
Write-offs, waivers, cancellation
CRDS levied on wages and salaries 6.220.90 and debt forgiveness 28.34 6,161.54
Assessment and collection costs 31.02
CRDS levied on property assets 314.94ssessment and collection costs 13|13 301.81
CRDS levied on investment income 328.88ssessment and collection costs 165 327.24
CRDS levied on sales of gems and
precious metals 4.25 Assessment and collection costs 0.02 4.23
CRDS levied on gaming proceeds 148.7Rssessment and collection costs 0{74 147.96
CRDS exemption offsets
(travel vouchers and voluntary 0.00 0.00 0.00
community services)
Provisions on outstanding CRDS to
Reversal of provisions on outstanding 14.90 be collected 5.5( 9.40
CRDS to be collected
Total 7,032.58 Total 80.40 6,952.18

Note 12.1: CSG revenues

Supplementary social security contributio@®ftribution Sociale Généralisée — CS8e a resource allocated to
CADES at the rate of 0.60% since 1 January 201€8® on income from employment, unemployment ahdrot
similar benefits and on taxable income from propartd investments, and at 0.30% for CSG on prbfits
gaming.

The tax base is the same as for the CRDS, withedoeption that no contributions are levied on thke of
precious metals and gems.

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
NET CSG REVENUES (Article 6) 7,717.93 6,058.58 5,845.77
CSG contributions levied on wages and salaries 56% 5,492.03 5,289.94
CSG contributions levied on property assets 358.60 260.69 249.17
CSG contributions levied on investment income 363.4 297.76 298.71
CSG contributions on gaming proceeds 8.95 8.10 7.95
CSG exemption offsets 0.00 0.00 0.00

CSG revenues, net of collection costs, amount&d f617.93 million.

CSG levied on wages and salaries (which is colleabainly by ACOSS) represents 90.14% of the tdthke
remaining CSG is levied mainly on income from irtvesnts and from property (9.75%).
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Note 12.1a

The table below provides a breakdown of incomedadges relating to the CSG at 31 December 2016.

CSG REVENUES (Il CSG COSTS (1 Net
(€ millions) revenues
(I-11

Write-offs, waivers, cancellation

CSG levied on wages and salaries 7,015.21 and debt forgiveness 23.31 6,956.92
Assessment and collection costs 34(92

CSG levied on property assets 374.12 Assessmerdailedtion costs 15.52 358.60

CSG levied on investment income 395.44 Assessment and collection costs 1.98 393.46

CSG levied on gaming proceeds 8.99 Assessment and collection costs 0.04 8.95

CSG exemption offsets 0.00 0.00 0.00

Reversal of provisions on Provisions on outstanding CSG to

outstanding CSG to be collected 0.00 be collected 17.15 (17.15)

Total 7,793.76 Total 92.98 7,700.78

Note 12.2: Social levies on income from property ahinvestments

Social levies on income from property and investisiemere a source of revenue allocated to CADESesinc
1 January 2011 under Act No. 2010-1594 of 20 Deezr@b10 (Articles 245-14 and 245-15 of the SocedBity
Code). Since 1 January 2016, CADES no longer resdive 1.3% portion of these levies, but an additi0.12%

of CSG.

The following table shows adjustments in 2016 tgnpants recognised in 2015.

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
NET REVENUE FROM SOCIAL LEVIES (15.86) 1,493.91 1,453.93
On income from property (7.52) 687.78 644.18
On income from investments (8.34) 806.13 809.75
Note 12.2a

The following table shows the breakdown of revelame costs associated with social levies on incorom f
property and investments recognised in 2016.

REVENUES FROM SOCIAL () COSTS RELATING TO (D) Net
LEVIES SOCIAL LEVIES revenues
(€ millions) (I-11)
Social levies on income from (6.89) Assessment and collection costs 0/08 (7.52)
property

Write-offs, waivers, cancellation

and debt forgiveness 0.55
Social levies on income from (8.39) Assessment and collection costs (0.04) (8.35)
investments
Reversal of provisions on Provisions on outstanding amounts
outstanding amounts to be collected to be collected
Total (15.28) Total 0.58 (15.86)
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Note 12.3: Payments by the Retirement Reserve FurtBRR)

The Retirement Reserve Fund paid €2.10 billion ®@Agril 2016 in respect of 2016.

Period ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
EE\IGII:E)NUE FROM THE RETIREMENT RESERVE 2.100.00 2.100.00 2.100.00
Revenue for the year 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00

Note 13: General operating charges

Period ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
STAFF COSTS 1.11 1.07 1.04
Wages and salaries 0.84 0.72 0.75
Social security charges 0.33 0.28 0.29
Time savings account 0.00 0.01 0.00
Sundry charges (0.06) 0.06 0.00
OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1.81 1.80 1.85
Taxes and duties 0.11 0.09 0.09
External services 1.70 1.71 1.76
Total 2.92 2.87 2.89

General operating charges correspond to expendéliireg within the scope of the administrative lgetl They do

not include the acquisition and the amortisatiod dapreciation of fixed assets (see Note 2). Theyeased by
1.74% compared with 31 December 2015 (adjustme20db indemnities in 2016).

The charges representing the statutory auditoes fer the statutory audit of the 2016 financiatestnents came to
€41,000. Fees for services other than the statatadit of the financial statements were nil in 2016

List of staff positions at 31 December 2016

Non-civil servant employees:
- 1 senior front office manager (grade A)
- 1 assistant front office manager (grade A)
- 1 market operator (grade A)
- 1 asset and liabilities matching strategist (grajle
- 1 senior back office manager (grade A)
- 1 assistant back office manager (grade A)
- 1 bilingual executive secretary (grade C)

Civil servants:
- 1 general office manager (grade A)
- 1 administrative manager (grade A)
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Note 13a: Property assets and property management

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
REVENUES FROM PROPERTY ASSETS 0.20 0.13 0.13
Exceptional income - - -
Provisions reversed 0.20 0.13 0.13
CHARGES ON PROPERTY ASSETS - - 0.09
External services - - -
Exceptional charges - - 0.09

All the properties transferred to CADES on 1 Japu2®00 were sold over the next three years. Sirf 2
CADES has managed the run-off of the last propeere of disputes.

Note 14: Other non-banking operating charges

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014

Payments to the State - - _
Provision for sundry liabilities

Ruyter judgment - 0.23 42.80
Reduction of CSG and CRDS income - 5.17 -
Total - 5.40 42.80

In the Judgment of 26 February 2015, the EuropeaunrtCf Justice confirmed the non-taxability of peoty
income received in France by tax non-residents,gradted them entitlement to the full reimbursen@msums
unduly deducted since 2012 in respect of CRDS, @&d>social levies.

The Social Security Department (DSS) assesseceimbursement payable by CADES as at 31 December 201
€42.8 million. This provisional amount was revisgnvards by €0.23 million at 31 December 2015.

Note 14a: Other operating income

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014

Other reversals of provisions for sundry charges - - -
Other reversals of provisions for sundry liabiktie
Ruyter judgment 21.99 0.01

Total 21.99 0.01 -
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Note 15: Exceptional income

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
Statutory limitation of debt — administrative butige - - 0.26
Statutory limitation of debt — financing budget - 0.39 0.46
Other exceptional income 0.03 0.06 0.08
Total 0.03 0.45 0.80

Note 15a: Estimation changes and error adjustmentis respect of the 2015 financial year

Period ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
Impact on profit and loss for the year of estimatio - 187.97 -
changes notified by ACOSS

- accrued income - 120.36 -
- provisions for CSG and CRDS receivables i 134 i
impairment '

- provisions for liabilities and reduction of CS@da i 35.80 i
CRDS income '

- credit notes and balances not allocated - 33.15 -
Impact on profit and loss for the year of adjustmen i ) i
of the presentation of receivables

- reversal of provisions for receivables - 28.73 -
- provisions for liabilities - 28.73 -
Total - 187.97 -

First, in accordance with the ACOSS natifications the 2015 financial year, CADES recognised tHiidng
amounts in the 2015 profit and loss account urttespecific heading “estimation changes and edjuséments”:

estimation changes to improve the consistency tothadon methods relating to accrued CRDS and CSG
income, in the amount of €-120.36 million, corrashiong to the remeasurement difference on the
“Accrued income” line (see Note 4) in 2014, caltethusing the new estimation method;

estimation changes relating to the provision faereables in the amount of €1.34 million, corresjing

to the remeasurement difference on the “Provisiding’ (see Note 3) in 2014, calculated using the ne
estimation method;

estimation changes to improve the consistency tihaon methods relating to provisions for liatids
and charges, in the amount of €-35.80 million, esponding to the remeasurement difference on the
“Provision for liabilities and charges and Reductiaf CSG and CRDS income” line (see Note 8a) in
2014, calculated using the new estimation method,;

estimation changes relating to credit notes andne&is not allocated by ACOSS in the amount of £533.
million, corresponding to the remeasurement difieezon the “Sundry creditors” line (see Note 7) in
2014, calculated using the new estimation method.

Second, an erroneous allocation of provisions éductions in income was corrected in 2015, withmpact on
2015 profit and loss:

The provisions for reductions in income were vglgmrecognised in the provision for receivable lat 31
December 2014 in the amount of €28.73 million. A®sult, the provision for reductions in income was
undervalued by €28.73 million and the provision feceivables was overvalued by €28.73 million. A
reversal of provisions for receivables in the aniafn€28.73 million and an allocation to provisicius
liabilities in the same amount were recognised 013 under the “Estimation changes and error
adjustments” heading.

This error adjustment had no impact on 2015 peofd loss.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS

Off-balance sheet commitments, as reported, digsiigbetween commitments given and commitmentsvede
and are analysed between loan commitments, guarasidigations and guarantees on securities. Certain
commitments are not recorded on the face of theumts, being commitments in respect of currencystrations
and forward financial instruments. Information neljag these commitments is provided in Notes 16 Bhbelow.

Note 16: Currency transactions

31 December 2016 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
. Currencies . Currencies . Currencies
- Currencies tc Currencies tc Currencies tc
At (€ millions) . to be . to be . to be
be received . be received . be received .
delivered delivered delivered

FORWARD TRANSACTIONS

. L . 52,162.7 - 44,971.4. - -

Financing in foreign currency 27,930.2.

Hedging transactionsover the counte!

Forward exchange against euros 13,299.1 - 8,166.01 - 5.032.1: -
Up to 1 year 13,299.1 - 8,166.01 - 5,923.1 -
From 1 to 5 years - - - - - -
Over 5 years - - - - - -

Currency swaps against eurc 38,863.5! - 36,805.3: - 31'998[10 -

. 6.527.8" 9,552.4:
Up to 1 year 8,377.6 - , - 16.479.7 -
22,3574 ST
From 1 to 5 years 22,486.3 - ' - 5 965.9! -
Over 5 years 7,999.5 } 7,920.0¢ } 1909.9: -

FORWARD TRANSACTIONS
Foreign currency financing commitments receive

Hedging transactions over the counte

Forward exchange against euros - - - - -

Up to 1 year - - - - - -
From 1 to 5 years - - - - - R

Currency swaps against eurc - - - - - -
Up to 1 year - - - - - R

From 1 to 5 years - - - - - -
Over 5 years - - - - - R

Forward exchange contracts against euro correspofadward purchases entered into for the purpdde=dging

commercial paper denominated in foreign currencies.

Outstandings increased by 15.99% at 31 Decembér @Yhpared with 31 December 2015.

The increase in currency swaps against euro ibwtble to the increase in foreign currency bosgliance in
2016 compared with the repayment of bonds in foregrrency (issuance of €7.77 billion in bonds anefgn

currency, compared with repayment of €5.41 billbdéitbonds in foreign currency).
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Note 17: Forward financial instruments

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014

INTEREST RATE INSTRUMENTS

Organised markets and equivalents - - -
Firm transactions entered into for hedging purposes - - -
Euro Bobl futures contracts (5 years) - - -
Euro Bund futures contracts (10 years) - - -
Other firm transactions - - -
Options entered into for hedging purposes - - -
Other options - - -
Over the counter 2,506.54 2,36.54 2,396.54

Firm transactions entered into for hedging purposes
Interest rate swaps in euro 2,506.54 2,346.54 2,396.54
Micro hedging 2,506.54 2,346.54 2,396.54
-Upto 1year 45.70 - 50.00
- From 1 to 5 years 1,279.84 325.54 32554
- Over 5 years 1,181.00 2,021.00 2,021.0
Macro hedging - - -
-Upto 1 year - - -

- From 1 to 5 years - - -

- Over 5 years - - -
Isolated positions - - -
-Upto 1 year - - -

- From 1 to 5 years - - -

- Over 5 years - - -
Currency swaps - - -
Micro hedging - - -
-Upto 1 year - - -

- From 1 to 5 years - - -

- Over 5 years - - -

At 31 December 2016, interest rate instrumentsredtato by CADES comprise swaps amounting to €250
million entered into for micro hedging purposesluding swaps cancellable by counterparties of €a8PHillion.

In 2007 and 2008, CADES entered into swaps undéhaihreceives three-month Euribor less a haiend pays
a fixed rate. These swaps may be rescinded byadheterparties six months after inception and thesmethree
months.

These cancellable swaps, which qualify as micraybsdare used to transform CADES’ adjustable tatetsired
transactions into fixed rate transactions for asiesix months. Each swap is therefore systemigtibatked to a
swap already held in portfolio by CADES. If the psaare cancelled, CADES reverts to its initial maficing
level.

These swaps were authorised by the Board of Direaio 28 November 2007. They are designated asomicr

hedges (Category b of Regulations No. 90-15 an@88&ursuant to French banking regulatioRédlementation
Bancaire.
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Note 18: Other off-balance sheet commitments

At 31 December 31 December 31 December
(€ millions) 2016 2015 2014
FINANCING COMMITMENTS
Commitments received
From credit institutions
- Back-up credit lines 700.00 700.00 700.00
- Multi-currency credit lines - -
- Credit lines in treasury bills - - -
- Other credit lines - 50.00 -
Sundry
- Retirement Reserve FunBdnds de Réserve 16,800.00 18,900 21,000
pour les Retraités
- Borrowings - - -
- Commercial paper and securities lent under
repurchase agreements ) ) i
Commitments given
Payments to the State - - -
Payments to social security agencies - - -
- First assumption of debt provided for by 2011
Social Security Finance Act ) ) i
- Second assumption of debt provided for by i 23.609.04 33.609.04

2011 Social Security Finance Act
Financing commitments given under repurchase
agreements, currency purchases and treasury bills

Commitments received consist of:

* Four back-up credit lines totalling €700 million ish are cancellable by the counterparty at 30 dagtte;
e Atotal of €16.80 billion in payments from the Rethent Reserve Fund, corresponding to the annyaiqras
of €2.1 billion for the period from 2017 to 2024yrpuant to the 2011 Social Security Funding Act Riail0-

1594 of 20 December 2010.

CADES no longer had any commitments given at 3lebdxer 2016.

Article 26 of the 2016 Social Security Funding Atid. 2015-1702 of 21 December 2015:
- shortened the deficits period from 2017 to 2015,

- withdrew the ceiling on the yearly debt assumpamount,

- abolished the 30 June payment deadline.

Decree No. 2016-110 of 4 February 2016 set thevatg timetable for assumption of the 2016 socedusity

debt:
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Payments by CADES to ACOSS Allocation by ACOSS efamounts paid by CADES to the
branches and funds concerned
Date Amount General system Senior Citizeng’
€) Sickness, Senior Citizens, | Family branch Solidarity Fund
Maternity, Widows and (FSV)
Incapacity and Widowers branch
Death branch

9 February 2016 4,000,000,000.00 2,370,000,000.00 0,002,000.00 1,000,000,000.00 610,000,000.00
29 February 2016 2,000,000,000.p0 1,190,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 300,000,00Q.00
9 March 2016 2,000,000,000.00 1,190,000,000.00 000000.00 500,000,000.00 300,000,000}00
18 March 2016 1,000,000,000.00 597,000,00Q.00 300000 250,000,000.0D 150,000,000{00
8 April 2016 1,000,000,000.00 597,000,000)00 3,000,00 250,000,000.00 150,000,000/00
20 April 2016 1,000,000,000.00 597,000,000{00 3,000.00 250,000,000.00 150,000,000{00
9 May 2016 2,000,000,000.00 1,193,000,000.00 7000000 500,000,000.00 300,000,000J00
20 May 2016 2,000,000,000.00 1,193,000,000.00 7000000 500,000,000.0D 300,000,000/00
9 June 2016 1,000,000,000.00 597,000,000.00 3,0000 250,000,000.00 150,000,000.,00
20 June 2016 1,000,000,000.p0 597,000,000.00 00O 250,000,000.00 150,000,000/00
15 July 2016 2,000,000,000.00 1,193,000,000.00 07000.00 500,000,000.00 300,000,000]00
19 August 2016 2,000,000,000.00 1,193,000,000.00 0007000.00 500,000,000.00 300,000,000,.00
9 September 2016 1,000,000,000400 597,000,000.00 000,900.00 250,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
20 Septembe 1,609,043,238.1( 892,061,748.62 2,748,376.96 441%88.31 294,348,117.21
2016
Total 23,609,043,238.1( 13,996,061,748.62 88,7486 5,919,884,995.31  3,604,348,117)21

The ministerial order of 14 September 2016 amertdedallocation by ACOSS of payments made by CADES i
respect of the debt assumption for 2016.

The last payment, on 20 September 2016, was et follows:

Payments by CADES to ACO$S Allocation by ACOSS of amounts paid by CADES to linanches and funds concerngd
GENERAL REGIME
Date TOTAL Health, Maternity Senior Citizens, Widov Eamil FSV
Incapacity and Dgath  and Widowers y
20/09/201¢ 1,609,043,238.] 1,062,368,158.4  (256,071,837.2B 419,884,995.% 382,861,921.4
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Note 19: Abridged statements

BALANCE SHEET

At
(€ millions)

31 December 2016

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT BROUGHT FORWARD FROM 1 JANU ARY

2016

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
PROPERTY ENDOWMENT

DEBT REMAINING TO BE REPAID AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Represented by:

Liabilities towards third parties

- Borrowings falling due within 1 year

- Borrowings falling due after 1 year

- Other creditors, accruals and unearned income
Less assets held by CADES

- Financial investments

- Other debtors, prepayments and accrued income

(150,441.14)

14,426.39
181.22

(135,833.53)

29,425.60
112,345.07
6,593.34

5,636.84
6,893.64

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Period ended
(€ millions)

31 December 2016

NET REVENUE FROM CRDS, CSG AND SOCIAL LEVIES 14,659.09
ESTIMATION CHANGES AND ERROR ADJUSTMENTS 0.00
NET REVENUE FROM RETIREMENT RESERVE FUND (FRR) 2,100.00
NET REVENUE FROM PROPERTY 0.20
Interest payable and similar charges (3,378.43)
Fees (37.68)
Interest receivable and similar income 1,086.12
NET FINANCIAL CHARGES (2,329.99)
Operating charges (2.94)
OPERATING PROFIT 14,426.36
Provision for sundry liabilities 0.00
Exceptional income 0.03
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 14,£26.39
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OTHER INFORMATION

The table below provides information on market ealcomparing the debt at repayment value as ateégkmber
2016 with the debt at market value.

Debt at repayment value as at closing date conwptiieefollowing elements:
(a) The nominal value of fixed rate, variable rabel adjustable rate borrowings in euros.

(b) The nominal value of the fixed rate, varialdge and adjustable rate euro legs of basis swepsgenting
perfect transformation of foreign currency-denortedaborrowings into euro-denominated borrowings.

(c) The accrued nominal value of inflation indexexhds as at 31 December 2016.

(d) Interest accrued but not yet due is excludenhfdebt at repayment value.

Debt at repayment value at maturity comprises dhiewing elements:
(@) The nominal value of fixed rate, variable ratel adjustable rate borrowings in euro.

(b) The nominal value of the fixed rate, variatdée and adjustable rate euro legs of swaps ragnegeerfect
transformation of foreign currency-denominated daings into euro-denominated borrowings.

(c) The projected nominal value at maturity ofatibn indexed bonds.

(d) The market value of swaps used for macro medgi

Debt at market value comprises the following eletsien

(@) The value of the fixed rate bonds and inflatindexed bonds based on the average market pnicglo
December 2016.

(b) The value of unlisted securities issued by E&Dobtained using the CADES zero-coupon curve & at
December 2016. Options embedded in certain of tbesarities are valued using an internal modeldase
standard valuation software developed and markateth independent service provider.

(c) The value of derivatives used to transfornt pérthe debt through micro hedging. Options emieedoh
certain of these instruments are valued usingdheesnternal model.

(d) The value of derivatives used for macro heglgin

(e) The present value at 31 December 2016 ofteadla repurchase agreements and bank balances.
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(in millions of euros) DEBT AT REPAYMENT VALUE DEBTO;L'\S'ERKET MgEKHEI;D\gI\II:lLéE
TRANSACTIONS
AT MATURITY AT 31 Dz%i:gMBER AT 31 Dz%EGEMBER AT 31 Dz%EGEMBER
UP TO 1 YEAR 25,700.35 25,685.66 25,924.28 2,075.49
FROM 1 TO 5 YEARS 67,723.62 67,418.46 73,300.62 1,501.92
OVER'S YEARS 42,970.67 42,589.65 49,430.51 1,028.99
SWAPS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 136,394.64 135,693.76 148,664.41 4,606.39
REVISABLE RATES 49,729.94 49,729.92 50,012.89 4,580.63
INDEXED RATES 12,494.49 11,793.63 13,307.80 0.00
FIXED RATES 74,170.21 74,170.21 85,343.72 25.76
SWAPS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 136,394.64 135,693.76 148,664.41 4,606.39

Compared with prior years, at 31 December 2016etled been an increase in short and medium-termy deb
resulting mainly from a decrease in long-term dabtshown by the table below:

Debt 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Short-term (under 1 year) 18.93% 13.29% 14.67%
Medium-term 49.68% 41.77% 37.92%
Long-term (over 5 years) 31.39% 44.94% 47.41%

As regards the breakdown between issues denomiimagaato and other currencies, foreign currencyetddnated
debt increased in the year ended 31 December 281hown by the table below:

Debt 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 December
2016 2015 2014
In foreign currencies 35.08% 30.64% 26.20%
In euros 64.92% 69.36% 73.80%

Lastly, the post-hedging debt breakdown below shawsncrease in revisable rate issues and a comdsm
decrease mainly in fixed rate issues relative 120

Debt ‘ 31 December‘ 31 December’ 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Revisable rate 36.65% 27.82% 23.71%
Indexed rate 8.69% 9.32% 9.09%
Fixed rate 54.66% 62.86% 67.20%
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Explanation of variances between market value apdyment value of debt:

The difference between the market value of the dpbitits repayment value is explained by the falhgfactors:

- The market value of fixed rate loans increasathbse of the decline in interest rates;

- Market value factors in the present value of feittoupons whereas the repayment value excludgmuosyu
and

- Gains and losses on macro hedging and inflatiaps impact market value one way or the other.

The above information covers a significant parC#DES’ main activity, which is to repay in the bgsissible
conditions the debt it raises on the financial ratsk
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